
- 1 - 

WORCESTERSHIRE DISTRICT COUNCILS AND COUNTY COUNCIL 
 

MEETING OF THE WORCESTERSHIRE SHARED SERVICES  
JOINT COMMITTEE 

 
 

THURSDAY 25TH NOVEMBER 2010 AT 4.00 P.M. 
 

COUNCIL CHAMBER, THE COUNCIL HOUSE, BURCOT LANE, BROMSGROVE 
 

MEMBERS: Bromsgrove District Council: Councillor Mrs. M. Bunker 
Bromsgrove District Council: Councillor P. Whittaker 
Malvern Hills District Council: Councillor Mrs. B. Behan 
Malvern Hills District Council: Councillor R. Madden 
Redditch Borough Council: Councillor M. Braley 
Redditch Borough Council: Councillor G. Vickery 
Worcester City Council: Councillor Mrs. L. Hodgson (Vice-Chairman) 
Worcester City Council: Councillor F. Lankester 
Worcestershire County Council: Councillor S. Clee 
Worcestershire County Council: Councillor D. Prodger, MBE 
Wychavon District Council: Councillor Mrs A. Mackison (Chairman) 
Wychavon District Council: Councillor A. Dyke 
Wyre Forest District Council: Councillor Mrs. A. Hingley 
(substituting for Councillor J. Baker) 
Wyre Forest District Council: Councillor M. Hart 

   
Note: 
A visual display on ‘What Matters’ will be made available for Members to 
view before and after the meeting.   

 
 

AGENDA 
 

1. To receive apologies for absence and notification of substitutes  
 

2. Declarations of Interest  
 

3. To consider the minutes of the meeting of Worcestershire Shared Services 
Joint Committee held on 9th September 2010 (Pages 1 - 6) 
 

4. Worcestershire Regulatory Services - 'draft' Protocol for referral of Decisions 
(Pages 7 - 8) 
 

5. Project Plan Update - Ian Edwards (Pages 9 - 14) 
 

6. Worcestershire Regulatory Services 2010 - 2011 Budget Update (Pages 15 - 
22) 
 



- 2 - 

7. Worcestershire Regulatory Services - Draft Service Plan 2011/ 2012 (Pages 
23 - 42) 
 

8. Worcestershire Regulatory Services - Budget 2011/2012 - 2013/2014 (Pages 
43 - 46) 
 

9. Accommodation (to follow)  
 

10. Food Choices Project (Pages 47 - 48) 
 

11. Update to Press Release Protocol (Pages 49 - 50) 
 

12. Date and Time of next meeting  
 

13. To consider any other business, details of which have been notified to the 
Head of Legal, Equalities and Democratic Services prior to the 
commencement of the meeting and which the Chairman considers to be of so 
urgent a nature that it cannot wait until the next meeting  
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

K. DICKS 
Chief Executive  

The Council House 
Burcot Lane 
BROMSGROVE 
Worcestershire 
B60 1AA 
 
17th November 2010 
 



������

�����������	��
�	���	��
���
�	��
�
�
���
��
���
�	�




����	
�
��
���
�����������	��
������
����	���





��	
�
����	����




���������
���
���������
����
��
����
����

�

������	
� ��
����
�������������
�����
��
������
�����������������
������������������
�����
��
������
����������������
������������������
�����
��
������
�������  ���
��  ������
�
�����
�����
��
������
����������!�
��  ������
�
�����
�����
��
������
��"��#�����!�$ ��������������
%��
�&'�&��
��('�&)��
*
�����������!��
�����
��
������
�������+��,
 ��
��$#������������)�
*
�����������!��
�����
��
������
��-��+���������
*
��������������
���!��
�����
��
������
����������
*
��������������
���!��
�����
��
������
�������
 ���.�����
*!����
������������
�����
��
������
�������/��������
��$��������)�
*!����
������������
�����
��
������
��/���!���
*!���-
���������������
�����
��
������
��0��������
*!���-
���������������
�����
��
������
�����,��������
�

� 12�������
���
������
�������0��/��������.���3��!�+�� ��.�*!����
��
����������
�����.�����#��/����
�.���3��!����������������
��4������!�
���3
���2����!�5
��	������!��������������������.�*!����
�����������
�
�������� ��������"�!.�*
�������������������� �	4
�	����$*�		).�
��
��������������.�*
��������������
���!��
�������



� 6�������
�����6��� 4�� �.��������
�!������������
7������������
�

� 155�����
��������0
� ��.�����0�����������.��������-���������� �
��������
���
�
	������������4���
�� ����2���.�
55�������� �6���������
���������������
/��������8�����
5��������������2���5�����
 ����
���4����������2!���
���
3��������

�
�&'�&� ������	��
���
����
��



�
/���3
�
�!�5
���2������4���������� �5�
���
������
�����*����������
�

��'�&� ��������	�
�
��
	
������


�
�
� ��������
���
5����������4����������� ��
�

�9'�&� �	
����


�
	��� �������� 
5� ���� �������� 
5� ���� *
������������� ����� � �������� 0
����
�
����������� �
�������0����9&�&�4������2����� ��
�
��������������������������2���33�
�� �������
���������
� ��

Agenda Item 3

Page 1



*
������������������ ����������0
�����
��������
:�����3���2���9&�&�

��9���

�
�;'�&� ��	����
�����
������
����
�
�
�������



�
	��� �
�������� �
��� ��� � �� ��3
���  ��������� 	��� �������� *����� ��33�����
��������
���9&&:��������������
�5
����
������0�����!�9&�&��� �4
�� ��33�!�
�
�����3�������4�������33���������� � �5
���������
����3��
������� ����3�������
 �����2���
�� �!������� � 	��� ��������
��� ��3
�� � ��4� �
���
�����  ������ �� �
��8���� � �
���� ����
������� �
� ����!�
����� ����������������
��������
5� ��33�!���
	�����4���������
������� ��
�3�
�����3�2������������� ���8���� ��������33�!�
�
� �� ���
� �� ����� ������������ � +
���� ����
�������4
�� � ����� ���� 3
4���� �
�
������� 5
�� ���� ��������� 3�
�� � �� � 	��� ,�� � 
5�*
������������� �������
�!�
��������� ���3
� � � �
����2���%� 8�����
��� ����� ���� ���� ����� 2������� ��
�4���� 
5� ���� ��4� ��������
��� �� � ���� 3�
3
�� � �������� �� � 4������� ����
3�
3
�� ����������� �2����2��� �
��5�����
������
���!��
�
�������
���
 ����� ���� �
������ 5
�� ����� ���2��� /���
���!� � 
3��� ����
3�
3
�� �5������ ���������5
��3�������4�������33��������5
��
4�
��
�
�����/���������� � � <=&�3����
���$�3��
�<>&&���?����)�
�
6����������
��$����������������
�)� <=&�3����
���$�3��
�<�&&���?����)�
�
"�����������/���
������
�� � <�&&���?�����
�
���3�����$����������)� � <�&&���?�����
�
/���!����������3����
�������������� �����������
���&� <�9>���?�����
������$��������33����)�
�
������������ ������������ � <�&&���?�����
�������
���
������
�
�������� �������� ��� � <>&&���?�����
���
���
������

�
�='�&� ����������
����	���
������
����
 
����



�
	����?��������������
�.�-�������@��
�3
��������
�����.���
����
������������
�
������ �� � ��  ����� �
�
���� �
������ �3
�
���� � �
� ���2���� 5
�� ���� �����
��2�����
�� 
5� ���� �������
�!� ��������� �� ���� 9&�&� '� 9&��� ��3
��� �
� ����
�
���������
�
	��� �
�������� �
��� ��� � �� ��3
��� 
�� ���� ������ � �������
�!� ���������
�� ���� 5
�� 9&�&� '� 9&���� � 	���*
������������� ����� � ��������� ����������3�
/��������� ����� � 
�� ���� 0���� 9&�&� �� � ����� � � �� ������� 4������ ����
-���������/�������������
��33�
�����5�����2� ����5
������3���
 �0����9&�&��
�
;����������9&�����	����?��������������
�.�-��������� ����
���������3
� � �
�
� 8�����
��� 5�
�����2���� ����� ���� ���� ��������
��� ����� �� � 2���� �� ��
�� � �
�� � ���2���%� ��8������ ����� 5������ ��3
���� �
������ � 5�������  ������ �
��5
�����
��5
��������� ��� �������2���/���
���!��
�

Page 2



*
������������������ ����������0
�����
��������
:�����3���2���9&�&�

��;���

��������� ����� ���� �������
�!� ��������� �� ���� 5
�� 9&�&� '� 9&��� 2��
�33�
�� ��
�

�>'�&� �����������	��
 ����������
 ����	���
 ��������
��

�������


�
	����
���������
��� ��� ��� ��3
���
�� ������������ �������
5�3��5
����������
��8����� ����������������
5�����0
�����
����������� �
�������0����9&�&���	���
,�� � 
5� *
������������� �������
�!� ��������� ��5
��� � ���2���� �����
3��5
������� 4��� �
���� 4���� �� � ����� ���� ���2��� /���
������� 3��5
�������
4
�� � 2���
���
�� �  ������ 5
��������!���������� 4����� ��!� ������� 4
�� � 2��
����� � �� � �  ����� �� � 	��� ,�� � 
5� *
������������� �������
�!� ���������
���3
� � � �
� ���2���%� 8�����
��� ����� ���� 3��5
������� ��������� �� �
��5
��� � ���2���� ����� ��������!� ���!� 5�4� 3��5
������� ��������� 4����
�
��������� ���
��� ���� �
���!� 2��� ��� 4��� ������3��� � ����� 5�
�� /3���� 9&���
*
������������� �������
�!� ��������� 4
�� � ����� �� ������� �������� 3���.�
 ����
3� � �� � ����� � 2!� ���� �
�������.� 4���� ����� � 
���
���� �� �
3��5
���������������������4
�� �2����3
��� ��
������
��������
������������
2�������
�
	��� ��������� ������ � 
55������ �� � ���55� ���
��� � ��� ���� *
�������������
�������
�!������ ����������5
����������� �4
����
�
��������!

$�)� ����� 	��� ,�� � 
5� *
������������� �������
�!� ��������� 2�� ����� � �
�

3�
�� �� �
�������� ���2���� 4���� ������ �� ��� ���� ����
������� ��������
3��5
���������������A��� �

$2)� ����� ���� 3��5
������� ��� ������
�� �
� ���� 4
��� ������ � 
��� 2!�
*
������������� �������
�!� ��������� 
�� 2����5� 
5� ����� ���2���
/���
���!�2���
�� ��

�
�B'�&� �������
 ���

 �������
 	
����	
�
 �����
�
 ����
�
 "
 	�



�������


�
����6��� 4�� �.��������
�!������������
7������������3�
�� � ����2����4����
�� ������!� 
5� 3�
������ �������� 3����� 5
�� ���� 3���
 � ����� 0���� �
� :���
��3���2���9&�&�� �,�� ��5
��� ����2���� ����������55� ����������4�����������!�

��� 5
�� �
��������
�������� �����B�����3���2���9&�&�� �	���3�
3
�� �����������
�� ��� ��2��������
5�����
33
������!��
�2������
������������
��������,�����.�
+��������� �� � 	�� ���� ���� �� �� �
� ������� �� 4
��5
���� ����� 4
�� � 2��
����
����5
���� ��� �5��?�2������
�
	����������
�!������������
7��������������5
��� ������
��������
5����������
�
� ���� 
�������� ������ �4
� ����������� 5
��
4���� ���� � 
3��
�� 
5� ���� �!������
	�������������5
�����
���33�
������,�����3
� � ��
����2���%��
��������� �
���������� ������ ���!��4
�� ��
����3����
������2� ����
������3�
7���� �� ��������
�
	����?��������������
�.�-�������@��
�3
��������
�����.���
����
������������
�
�������� ���  ������
�
�����
���������3
� � ��
�8�����
���5�
�����2����
����� ���� 6�	� ���
������ �� � ��5
��� � ���2���� ����� ��� ���� �����
�� �>��

55���������4
�� �2���

������
�����4����6�	����
�������
�� �2��������2!�����
,
���/���
���!���-
��
4����5������� �������
�����4����

Page 3



*
������������������ ����������0
�����
��������
:�����3���2���9&�&�

��=���

�
��������!

$�)� �����0
�����
�����������2������5
������������3�����������
�������
5
��

$�)� ���� ���!���
�����
���������������4
�����������A��
$��)� ��������� ���!��4
�� ��
����3����
������2� ����
�� �� ����A��� �

$2)� ����� ���� 3��5
������� ��� ������
�� �
� ���� 4
��� ������ � 
��� 2!� ����
*
������������� �������
�!� ��������� 
�� 2����5� 
5� ����� ���2���
/���
���!�2���
�� ��

�
�C'�&� �����������	��
����������
����	���
"
�	��
�
�
������	���



�
	��� �
�������� �
��� ��� � �� ��3
��� 
�� ���� ����� �� � 
27�������� 
5� ����
*
������������� �������
�!� ��������� $*��)�� � 	��� ,�� � 
5� *
�������������
�������
�!���������� ����
 ��� �������3
���� �	�����3
�����3��� � �
�����
��� ����
����������������� �
27��������5
����������������������
��
�5
�4�� ���/�4
����
3�
���
������
55������5�
�������������
�!������������ �2�����
����� ��
��
��� ���
���� ������
��
5� ������������ ���3��5
������ ��������
��� 5�����
���� �	���3��3
���
2����� �
� � ����5!� ���� ����� ������ ����� ����� ���� �������� 4��� ���� �3� �
�  ���������
*������������
3��
5����������������������4����� ����5�� ����5
��
4�
�
�
§� 	
�3�
�����3�2������������� ���5��!�
§� 	
������������������ � ��
� ���
§� 	
���33
����
�������.�2������������ ���
�
���� ����
3�����
§� 	
�3�
��������������
�������� �������������55�����
5����������������
§� 	
�3�
�� �����������������������
�������
�����4����
�
��������
 ����� ���� ����� �� � 
27�������� 
5� *
������������� �������
�!�
������������� ����5�� ��� � ������ ��2
���2���� 
��� ��
�

�('�&� �����������	��
����������
����	����
���#	
�
�����	���
"

$���%	���
���#	
�&
�
�
����������	�



�
	��� �
�������� �
��� ��� � �� ��3
��� 
�� ���� ��� � �
� �
��� �
4�� �� �� �
���
5��?�2����33�
�����
�4
������3���������5
���33�
3������5��� ����55��� ��
��

�����
�
������������ ������!��� �����2����
3�������
� �����������55�����������������	���
,�� � 
5� *
������������� �������
�!� ��������� ����
 ��� � ���� ��3
��� �� �
��5
��� ����2������������
� ����
�������������.����55�4
�� �2�����
����� ��
�
4
���5�
���
���
���������
��� 
4��5������������
�� ������
���!��	����4
�� �
��
� � ���� ��������!� �
� ������� ���� ���� �?������� 
55����� ��������!� 2����� �� ���
������� �� � 	��� ,�� � 
5� *
������������� �������
�!� ��������� ���3
� � � �
�
���2���%�8�����
�������� ����������� ��
��������
55������������2����!��� ������
�

 � ����
���� ������
��� 4���� ��������� � 4���� 
55������ 2����� �
������2�����
-
��
4����5������� �������
�����4���
�
��������!


$�)� ����� ���2����  ������� 4���� ������ ���3������� ����
������� ���� ��� � �
�
� ��������� ���
��
 ���
�� �
���� �
�*
��������������������
�!� ���������
� ��� ������������������ �
� ��2�������?�������
55�������
��
 ���
���3���A�
� �� �
$2)� ����� ���� ����
��� �� � ���� �33�
���� ������ �
� 3�
������*
�������������
� �������
�!� ��������� ��� ������ 
5� 5��?�2��� 4
������ 3��������� �� �
� ���
��
 ���
����� ��2���
�� ��� ��� 
��� ��

Page 4



*
������������������ ����������0
�����
��������
:�����3���2���9&�&�

��>���

�
�:'�&� ���
�	
�
"
������
������
����
�����
�����




�
	���,�� �
5�*
��������������������
�!����������3�
�� � ������
��������4����
2���5� ������������ ��������������2��� ������� �5
��*
��������������������
�!�
���������$*��)�4����� ����� � ����
�������� �2����� �
�
�4���� ��������3� �����
D���������	
���
����
����	
�����
 
���
55������ �������
5� ������������4
�� � �����
3������
�

9&'�&� �����������	��
����������
������
����	���
"
���
�	�	��


�
	���#�����������������
 ��� ������������� ��?3����� ��������4��������5�����
�
5�����������
���,�2����������!�3�
������5������	���*
�������������,�2����4
���
�
�� �������
�3��?���3������!��������������
����3��
������ ������������ ���������
���3���
���
�����*
�������������,�2����4
���4
�� �3�
�� �����
33
������!�5
��
���2�����
�5�� �
����
����2
��������
���
5�����*
�������������,�2��� �4����
���4
�� �3�
�� ��5
��*
��������������������
�!������ ����������$*���)��
�

9�'�&� 	
����
 �
�
���������
�	��	

�����������	��
����������

����	���


�
�
��� �����
��
5�����������4��� �5���� ���
�

99'�&� 
�%�
����	
�


�
���2���� �
��� ��� � ����  ���� �� � ����� 
5� ���� ��?�� ��������� � -
��
4����
 �������
�� ���� �?�������� ������
�.� -������� @� �
�3
����� ���
�����.�
��
����
��� ��������� �
������ �� � ��  ����� �
�
���� �
������ ���������� � �����
���� �
�������� �� � �
� ��5
��� ���2��� /���
������� 2!� �
� ������ ����� ���� ����
�����2��������!�!����������
�����
5�������3�
3
�� ��
����2���
����
�����0
����
�
�������%��2� �����
�
���2�������
��
��� ��� ���������� �8�
����5
������������� ��
�������4����
�?3����� � ����� ���� ���� ��8��������� ����� 
��� ���2��� 5�
�� ����� ���2���
/���
���!� �� � �
� 2�� 3�������� � 	��� +����� ��������� ��������
��  ������
�
�����
��������5
��� ������
�����������������8�
��������� �2!�
���� ���2��� /���
������.� ��� ����� � ��� ���� *
������������� ����� � ���������
����������3.��������E����� �����.�0
�����
�������.�	�����
5���5�������4���
�������� ������
������2���2��3�������5�
����������2���/���
���!�������� ��
�
�
���� �-
��
4����5������� �������
��
������3
���2����!�
5�5���������������2�����
��8�
��������4����
�
��������� ����� ���� ��?�� �������� 
5� ���� 0
���� �
�������� 2�� ��� � 
��
	���� �!�9>����
���2���9&�&����=
&&3�������
����������2��.���
����
���
����������
�������
�

	�������������
�� ����B��&�3����
�
�
�

���������

Page 5



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 6



 
 

WORCESTERSHIRE SHARED SERVICES JOINT COMMITTEE 
 

PROTOCOL FOR REFERRAL OF DECISIONS TO MEMBER AUTHORITIES 
 
 

§ Minutes of each Joint Committee to be drafted and agreed with the 
Chairman  and Head of Regulatory Services within 10 working days.  

 
§ The Committee Services Officer who supports the Joint Committee to 

email the final minutes, for information, to the members of the Joint 
Committee and those officers who represent the member authorities on 
the Project Board. 

 
§ The Committee Services Officer to email the final minutes to the 

Democratic/Committee Services Manager of each member authority who 
shall ensure that the minutes are submitted to the next possible meeting of 
their authority’s Executive/Cabinet. 

 
§ In the event that all matters within a set of minutes are resolved items the 

Executive/Cabinet will receive the minutes for information only. 
 

§ In the event that a set of minutes contains any recommendations, the 
Committee Services Officer will provide each authority’s 
Democratic/Committee Services Manager with a full copy of the relevant 
report(s). Any such report(s) shall accompany the minutes when submitted 
to the Executive/Cabinet.  

 
§ The Executive/Cabinet shall consider and determine each 

recommendation which falls within its delegated powers. If a matter does 
not fall within its delegated powers, the Executive/Cabinet shall make a 
recommendation to the full Council. The Democratic/Committee Services 
Manager shall be responsible for ensuring that any recommendations from 
the Executive/Cabinet are referred to their full Council. 

 
§ The Democratic/Committee Services Manager for each member authority 

shall email the Committee Services Officer who supports the Joint 
Committee to confirm that recommendations have been considered and 
whether they were approved. 

 
§ The Committee Services Officer shall maintain appropriate records of 

recommendations and the outcome from each member authority. 
 

§ In the event that a recommendation is not approved by all member 
authorities, the Head of Regulatory Services shall report the outcome to 
the next possible meeting of the Joint Committee for information and 
consideration of any consequential action.  

Agenda Item 4

Page 7



Page 8

This page is intentionally left blank



1 
 

 

 

Joint Committee 
25th November 2010 
Report Title: WRS project manager update  

Introduction 
 

This report provides the Joint Committee with a summary of progress 
against plans for the period 10th September 2010 to 25th November 
2010. 

  

Key tasks & 
achievements 

Business as usual has been maintained throughout a challenging yet 
productive period of the project.  Key achievements within each 
workstream are provided below. 
 
Human Resources 
Mapping process has now been completed.  Of the 155 letters issued 
to staff within the structure, just 12 expressed dissatisfaction.  All 
dissatisfaction interviews have taken place and are resolved. 
 
Dates for the recruitment assessment centre for the levels B and C 
have been set.  Managers received assessment centre training on the 
1st November to help support them through the process. 
 
Level B assessment centres held 8th & 9th Nov.  Interviews 16th & 
17th November.  Level C assessment centre held 18th Nov. Interviews 
22nd & 23rd November. 
 
ICT & Transformation 
The 'Chance to Shine' roadshows have been held across the County 
throughout October.  All WRS staff and Joint Committee Members were 
invited to attend.  The purpose was to communicate the progress made 
to date and highlight the tasks to be achieved.  Overall feedback has 
been positive and there is a recommendation to extend the roadshow 
to all Members. 
 
Progress on the transitional phase continues to be made with migration 
of services to the Worcestershire Hub.  Redditch calls transferred to the 
Worcestershire Hub on the 15th October.  Implementation plan agreed 
with the Hub to continue the roll out with: 
 
- Wychavon 15/11 
- Worcester City 8/12 
- WCC Trading Standards 18/01/11 
- Wyre Forest 02/02 
- Bromsgrove 23/02 
 
The 'What Matters' programme whereby managers "stand in the 
customer's shoes" and experience what it is like to do business with 

Agenda Item 5

Page 9



2 
 

us is underway, with a feedback session arranged for December. 
 
The Staff Survey has now been launched.  Outputs and analysis will 
be available toward the end of November.  
 
Change Champions are being recruited across the service to 
support the change process.  Recruitment will take place throughout 
November and December. 
 
Interim Managers and the Transformation Project Team are to visit 
Gloucester City Council on 19th November 2010.  The 
transformation team also attended the Systems Thinking 
Networking Group held at Aylesbury in October. The Group 
comprises Officers from Buckinghamshire, Nottinghamshire, 
Suffolk and now Worcestershire Regulatory Services to share 
learning around systems thinking. 
 
Communications 
WRS comms newsletters continue to be the key communications 
source for the service.  This will soon be bolstered with the launch of 
the WRS intranet site, which will be hosted by Bromsgrove & Redditch.  
Staff will be able to access the site no matter where they are located 
within the County.  
 
Monthly meetings with recognised Trade Union side continue with 
relations good. 

  

Risks Update on risk reported to the 10th September Joint Committee. 
 
1. ICT & Transformation workstream timescales.  The new service 

delivery model originally planned for October 2010 will now be 
delivered in early 2011.  There is minimal impact to the overall 
project timescales or the project’s ability to deliver the business 
case benefits. 

 
Mitigating action continues with full time internal resources allocated 
to the workstream and external consultancy support available and 
provided only when appropriate.   

 
  

Priorities next 
period 

Human Resources 
- Management team in post 
- Recruitment completed 
- New structure populated  
 
ICT & Transformation 
- Low level requirements document complete 
- Procurement process underway with Invitation to tender issued  
- Service delivery reviews underway 
- Staff survey results published 
- Change champions appointed 
- Transfer of calls to the Worcestershire Hub completed by Feb 11. 
 
Communications 
- 'What Matters' roadshow extended to all Members 
- Intranet site established 
- Website development underway 

  

Page 10



 
3 

 
  

 
Budget report 
 

Report provided as a separate agenda item. 
 

Contact point 
 

Ian Edwards 
Project Manager 
 
Email: i.edwards@worcestershire.gov.uk 
Tel: 01905 822875 
Mob: 07948 168904 

 

Page 11



Page 12

This page is intentionally left blank



ID
%

C
om

pl
et

e
S

tr
ea

m
T

as
k 

N
am

e
D

ur
at

io
n

S
ta

rt
F

in
is

h

1
10

0%
S

T
A

G
E

 1
95

 d
ay

s
M

on
 0

1/
03

/1
0

F
ri 

09
/0

7/
10

2
80

%
S

T
A

G
E

 2
11

5 
da

ys
M

on
 1

2/
07

/1
0

F
ri 

17
/1

2/
10

3
0%

S
T

A
G

E
 3

24
5 

da
ys

M
on

 1
0/

01
/1

1
F

ri 
16

/1
2/

11

4
0%

S
T

A
G

E
 4

60
 d

ay
s

M
on

 0
9/

01
/1

2
F

ri 
30

/0
3/

12

5 6
10

0%
G

ov
er

na
nc

e
Le

ga
l a

gr
ee

m
en

t m
ad

e 
67

 d
ay

s
M

on
 0

1/
03

/1
0

T
ue

 0
1/

06
/1

0

7
10

0%
G

ov
er

na
nc

e
Jo

in
t c

om
m

itt
ee

 c
on

st
itu

te
d

67
 d

ay
s

M
on

 0
1/

03
/1

0
T

ue
 0

1/
06

/1
0

8
10

0%
P

eo
pl

e
S

ta
ff 

T
U

P
E

 c
om

pl
et

e
67

 d
ay

s
M

on
 0

1/
03

/1
0

T
ue

 0
1/

06
/1

0

9
10

0%
P

eo
pl

e
H

ea
d 

of
 S

er
vi

ce
 a

pp
oi

nt
m

en
t

35
 d

ay
s

M
on

 0
1/

03
/1

0
F

ri 
16

/0
4/

10

10
10

0%
P

eo
pl

e
F

or
m

al
 s

ta
ff 

co
ns

ul
ta

tio
n

22
 d

ay
s

W
ed

 1
8/

08
/1

0
T

hu
 1

6/
09

/1
0

11
10

0%
P

eo
pl

e
F

in
al

 v
er

si
on

 o
f s

tr
uc

tu
re

 c
om

m
un

ic
at

ed
0 

da
ys

T
hu

 3
0/

09
/1

0
T

hu
 3

0/
09

/1
0

12
70

%
P

eo
pl

e
R

ec
ru

itm
en

t o
f p

os
ts

 G
ro

up
 B

 &
 C

30
 d

ay
s

M
on

 0
1/

11
/1

0
F

ri 
10

/1
2/

10

13
0%

P
eo

pl
e

R
ec

ru
itm

en
t o

f p
os

ts
 G

ro
up

 D
 -

 G
40

 d
ay

s
M

on
 1

3/
12

/1
0

F
ri 

25
/0

2/
11

14
0%

P
eo

pl
e

Im
pl

em
en

t n
ew

 s
tr

uc
tu

re
0 

da
ys

F
ri 

25
/0

2/
11

F
ri 

25
/0

2/
11

15
0%

P
ro

pe
rt

y
A

cc
om

m
od

at
io

n 
ph

as
e 

1 
co

m
pl

et
e

0 
da

ys
F

ri 
25

/0
2/

11
F

ri 
25

/0
2/

11

16
0%

IC
T

&
T

B
us

in
es

s 
pr

oc
es

s 
re

de
si

gn
12

5 
da

ys
M

on
 0

1/
11

/1
0

F
ri 

13
/0

5/
11

17
0%

IC
T

&
T

Lo
w

 le
ve

l I
C

T
 r

eq
ui

re
m

en
ts

 a
pp

ro
ve

d
0 

da
ys

W
ed

 0
8/

12
/1

0
W

ed
 0

8/
12

/1
0

18
0%

IC
T

&
T

P
ro

cu
re

m
en

t o
f I

C
T

 s
ol

ut
io

n
60

 d
ay

s
M

on
 1

7/
01

/1
1

F
ri 

08
/0

4/
11

19
0%

IC
T

&
T

IC
T

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t p
ha

se
18

0 
da

ys
M

on
 1

1/
04

/1
1

F
ri 

16
/1

2/
11

20
0%

IC
T

&
T

D
at

a 
tr

an
sf

er
re

d 
an

d 
sy

st
em

s 
te

st
ed

18
0 

da
ys

M
on

 1
1/

04
/1

1
F

ri 
16

/1
2/

11

21
0%

IC
T

&
T

M
ig

ra
tio

n 
to

 s
in

gl
e 

M
IS

 c
om

pl
et

e
0 

da
ys

F
ri 

16
/1

2/
11

F
ri 

16
/1

2/
11

22
0%

IC
T

&
T

S
ta

ff 
tr

ai
ni

ng
60

 d
ay

s
M

on
 1

6/
05

/1
1

F
ri 

05
/0

8/
11

23
0%

H
ub

C
on

ta
ct

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
m

ig
ra

te
d 

to
 H

ub
0 

da
ys

F
ri 

16
/1

2/
11

F
ri 

16
/1

2/
11

24
0%

P
ro

je
ct

 M
ng

t
P

ro
je

ct
 c

lo
su

re
 a

ct
iv

ity
60

 d
ay

s
M

on
 0

9/
01

/1
2

F
ri 

30
/0

3/
12

30
/0

9

25
/0

2

25
/0

2

08
/1

2

16
/1

2

16
/1

2

Q
tr

 1
Q

tr
 2

Q
tr

 3
Q

tr
 4

Q
tr

 1
Q

tr
 2

Q
tr

 3
Q

tr
 4

Q
tr

 1
Q

tr
 2

20
10

20
11

20
12

W
O

R
C

E
S

T
E

R
S

H
IR

E
 R

E
G

U
LA

T
O

R
Y

 S
E

R
V

IC
E

S
 H

IG
H

 L
E

V
E

L 
IM

P
LE

M
E

N
T

A
T

IO
N

 P
LA

N

20
10

-1
1-

10
 H

LP
 v

0.
14

.m
pp

 
M

on
 0

8/
11

/1
0 

1 Page 13



Page 14

This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 

Joint Committee 
25th November 2010 
 
REGULATORY SERVICES BUDGET 2010/11 

  

Recommendation 
 

That the Committee note the current financial position of the 
service. 
 
That any savings occurring from the first years service 
provision are ring fenced and used to fund redundancy and 
transformation in coming years. 

Contribution to 
Priorities 
 

The development of a robust budget and financial 
management framework will ensure the priorities of the 
service are delivered within the agreed budget. 

Introduction/Summary 
 

The Worcestershire Shared Service Partnership 
commenced on the 1st June 2010, with the budget for this 
shared service approved by the Joint Committee on the 9th 
September 2010. 

This report provides members with details of the current 
financial position. 

Background  
 

Following the approval of the budget for financial year 
2010/11, this report details the financial position of the 
Regulatory Services function, with a projected outturn to the 
end of the financial year.  

Report Appendix 1 details the financial position for the Regulatory 
Services function for the period from 1st June to 30th 
September 2010, with a projected outturn to the end of the 
financial year.  A salary breakdown by month is included at 
Appendix 2 

As part of the compilation of this report estimated figures 
have been accrued for expenses incurred by partner 
authorities on behalf  of the service for which information 
and recharges have not yet been received. 

The 2010/11 salary budget projects a saving of £335k 
however, this saving will not be projected into coming years 
due to job evaluation, lack of reduction due to natural 
wastage. 

Agenda Item 6

Page 15



 

 

There are additional Revenue Start-up costs which relate to 
consultancy, pay protection, transformation, redundancy and 
pension strain  these will be reported upon separately in the 
future.   

Within the Business Case there were no anticipated savings 
from the provision of the service in the first year, 2010/11, 
therefore it is requested that any savings arising from this  
service are ring fenced, for use within 2011/12 for use on 
possible redundancy and transformation costs.  The current 
projected year end revenue position may change due to the 
nature of the accruals which have been calculated on an 
estimated basis and so could be subject to revision.   

Appendix 3, details the financial position for the capital 
element of the project, for the period from 1st June to 30th 
September 2010, with a projected outturn to the end of the 
financial year.  This has identified some significant variances 
the reasons for which have been included on the appendix. 

Financial Implications 
 

None other than those stated in the Appendix 

Sustainability 
 

None as a direct result of this report 

Contact Points 
 

Jayne Pickering – 01527-881400 
Debbie Randall – 01527-881235 

Background Papers 
 

Detailed financial business case  

 

Page 16



Regulatory Services - Revenue Monitoring 4 Months to End of September 2010

2010/11 
Budget     (10 
months)

2010/11   
Budget  

June - Sept 
10

2010/11   
Expenditure 
June - Sept 10

Variance Projected 
outturn 
2010/11

 Projected 
Outturn 
Variance 
2010/11

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Direct Expenditure
Employees

Salary 4,332 1,733 1,604 -129 3,993 -339
Subscription 1 1 0 -1 2 1
Training 1 1 1 0 1 0
Employee Insurance 16 6 17 11 16 0
CRB 0 0 0 0 0 0

Sub-Total - Employees 4,350 1,741 1,622 -119 4,012 -338

Premises
Rent 272 109 107 -2 272 0
Repairs & Maintenance 1 0 0 0 1 0
Water & Sewerage Services 0 0 0 0 0 0

Sub-Total - Premises 273 109 107 -2 273 0

Transport
Vehicle Hire 7 3 0 -3 7 0
Vehicle Fuel 8 3 0 -3 8 0
Tyres 0 0 0 0 0 0
Road Fund Tax 1 0 0 0 1 0
Vehicle Insurance 2 1 2 1 2 0
Vehicle Maintenance 12 5 5 0 12 0
Car Lease 0 0 4 4 2 2
Car Allowances 181 73 57 -16 182 1
Public Transport 0 0 0 0 0 0

Sub-Total - Transport 211 85 68 -17 214 3

Supplies and Services
Furniture & Equipment 78 31 8 -23 78 0
Clothes, uniforms and laundry 7 3 1 -2 7 0
Printing & Photocopying 39 15 3 -12 40 1
Stationery 0 0 0 0 0 0
Publications 44 18 3 -15 44 0
Postage 5 2 0 -2 5 0
ICT 84 34 16 -18 84 0
Telephones 30 12 32 20 30 0
Training & Seminars 64 26 11 -15 80 16
Car Parking & Subsistence 6 2 0 -2 6 0
Insurance 16 7 26 19 16 0
Miscellaneous Expenses 90 36 28 -8 90 0
Third Party Payments 0 0 0 0 0 0

Sub-Total - Supplies & Service 463 186 128 -58 480 17

Contractors
Dog warden/kennelling 421 168 159 -9 421 0
Pest control 0 0 0 0 0 0
Analytical services 0 0 0 0 0 0
Other contractors/consultants 280 112 178 66 284 4
Grants 2 1 0 -1 2 0
Advertisng 3 1 0 -1 3 0
Publicity & Promotions 4 2 1 -1 4 0
CRB Checks 0 0 0 0 0 0

Sub-Total 710 284 338 54 714 4

Total 6,007 2,405 2,263 -142 5,693 -314

Notes:-
Forward Pension strain added at 11.2%
Redditch, No recharge received.June, July, August & September estimated
Worcs City Recharge Received for June & July - Paid and Ledgered, August & September estimated
Wychavon Recharge Received for June, July, August & September - Paid and Ledgered
Malvern Recharge Received for June & July, under review, August & September estimated
Wyre Forest Recharge Received June & July, under review, August & September estimated
Worcs County, recharge being offsett against income.  Received  documenation to support June recharge, under review.  July - Sept estimated 
Other contractors/consultants - This variance is because contracts which extend for 12 months have been paid early in the financial year

Projected Outturn
Salary - Estimated on existing structure to end of Jan'11, New structure Feb & March 11
Running costs based on budget

Page 17



Page 18

This page is intentionally left blank



REGULATORY SERVICES SALARY BY MONTH AS AT END OF SEPTEMBER 2010
Appendix 2

Full Year Net 
Budget

Budget 
10/12ths

Salaries 
June 2010

Salaries 
July 2010

Salaries 
Aug 2010

Salaries 
Sept 2010

Salary Oct - 
Estimate on 
existing 
structure

Salary Nov - 
Estimate on 
existing 
structure

Salary Dec - 
Estimate on 
existing 
structure

Salary Jan - 
Estimate on 
existing 
structure

Spend Feb Spend Mar Sub-Total Spend 
Feb'11 - 
Estimated 
on new  
structure

Spend 
March'11 - 
Estimated 
on new  
structure

Salary projected 
outturn as at 
end of Sept 

2010 

Variance

Totals 5,194,042 4,328,368 412,638 423,084 400,505 395,812 400,245 400,245 400,245 400,245 13,857 13,857 3,260,733 366,028 366,028 3,992,789 -335,579
Monthly Budget 432,837

P
age 19



P
age 20

T
his page is intentionally left blank



Regulatory Services - Capital Monitoring 4 Months to End of September 2010 Appendix 3

Summary 
Full year 
Budget 

10 months
£'000

Summary  
Expenditure
 to Sept 10

£'000

Summary 
Budget 4 Mths 
June to Sept 

10
£'000

Summary 
Variance
£'000

Summary 
Projected 
Outturn 
£'000

Summary 
Projected
Outturn 
Variance
£'000

ICT
Management Information System 300 0 120 120 45 -255
Integration Costs 10 0 4 4 2 -8
Host ICT development capacity
- Temp uplift 50 0 20 20 25 -25
Content management System 25 0 10 10 10 -15
Sharepoint Development 25 0 10 10 25 0
Desktop/PC Refresh 24 4 9 5 24 0
Server/Network refresh 10 0 4 4 10 0
Process mapping & Workflow 150 0 60 60 0 -150

Accommodation 
Building works 10 0 4 4 4 -6
Cabling 2 0 1 1 2 0
Furniture 5 6 2 -4 6 1
Removals 5 0 2 2 2 -3

Project Management 75 0 30 30 75 0

Total 691 10 276 266 230 -461

Reasons for Project Variance 
Management Information System - Purchase of the new system will commence in January, following discussions with suppliers.
Host ICT development capacity - Temp Uplift - Work will progress when the HOS has the Regulatory Services team in place, 
this should be done by February 2011.
Process mapping & Workflow - This area of system transformation is waiting on the new system being in place to allow work to commence 

P
age 21



P
age 22

T
his page is intentionally left blank



 

Joint Committee 
Date 25th November 2010 
Title: Worcestershire Regulatory Services 2011/12 Service 
Plan 

Recommendation 
 

To receive this report as an item for information and to 
endorse the contents of the attached service plan. 
 

Contribution to 
Priorities/ 
Recommendations 
 

The Worcestershire Regulatory Services 2011/12 service 
plan will set out the service's priorities and outcome 
measures for the next financial year and be the basis for the 
following 2 years. 

Introduction/Summary 
Background  

 

Under the Worcestershire Shared Service Partnership 
service level agreement, Worcestershire Regulatory 
Services is required to submit a 3 year service plan covering 
business and financial objectives, efficiency targets, 
business continuity planning, risk management, indicative 
staffing levels and changes and performance targets. 

At it’s meeting on the 9th September the Joint Committee 
endorsed the following WRS proposed aims and objectives; 

• To protect public health and safety 

• To minimise crime and disorder 

• To support consumers, businesses and economic 
development 

• To protect the environment and tackle the effects of 
climate change 

• To provide a great service that our customers want 

The plan must also include a number of statutory 
requirements such as how the service is going to monitor 
compliance in food businesses and enforce health and 
safety legislation.  

With the removal of many of the National Indicators and a 
move towards a more outcome based approach to 
performance monitoring, this plan seeks to focus on 
outcomes and only measure what is important to the 
customer or what is required statutorily. 

This is a very early draft of the proposed plan to give 
members an idea of the format, nature of activities planned, 
outcomes and suggested measures of success. 

 

It is anticipated that the final plan will be put before members 

Agenda Item 7

Page 23



 
 

at their next meeting for approval. 

 

Report  
 

It is a requirement of the service level agreement that WRS 
submits a 3 year service plan to the Joint Committee for 
approval. The plan must cover business and financial 
objectives, efficiency targets, business continuity planning, 
risk management, indicative staffing levels and changes and 
performance targets. 

However in the absence of any National Indicators, the 
removal of LAA targets and a move towards outcome  
measures it is timely to consider a new approach to 
performance measures and target setting. The plan 
therefore seeks to only measure what is important to 
customers, in relation to expected outcomes.  

In developing these outcome measures a series of 
workshops have been run with the Local Better Regulation 
Office using their ‘Outcomes and Impacts’ Toolkit. 

This approach has also been discussed with the Food 
Standards Agency and Health and Safety Executive and 
received full support. 

The activities detailed in the plan are based on the 
Statement of Partner Service Requirements and include 
activities that meet our statutory obligations, monitor levels 
of food business compliance, ensure animal welfare issues 
are dealt with and enforce health and safety legislation. 

It should be noted that any activity undertaken will be on a 
risk based or intelligence led basis, therefore work will not 
be undertaken unless there is a solid evidence based 
reason to do so. 

Using this approach combined with transforming the 
business using a systems thinking approach, the service will 
become more streamlined, efficient and customer focussed, 
thereby enabling the service plan to be delivered within 
existing and anticipated resources. 

 

Financial Implications 
 

The financial implications are contained within the proposed 
WRS budget. 
 

Sustainability 
 

Performance against the service plan will be reported to the 
Joint Committee on a quarterly basis and reviewed annually. 
 

Contact Points 
 

Steve Jorden, Head of Worcestershire Regulatory Services 
 

Page 24



 
  

 
Background Papers 
 

Worcestershire Shared Service Partnership service level 
agreement 
 
Statement of Partner Service Requirements 
 
Local Better Regulation Office ‘Outcomes and Impact 
Toolkit’ 
 
Service delivery plan 2011/2 (attached as appendix A) 

 

Page 25



Page 26

This page is intentionally left blank



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 A

 

S
er

vi
ce

 D
el

iv
er

y 
P

la
n

s 
20

11
/1

2

Page 27



C
re

at
ed

 o
n 

11
/1

1/
20

10
 1

6:
01

:0
0 

V
er

si
on

 1
 

1

O
u

tc
o

m
es

:
1.

 
R

ed
u

ce
d

 in
ci

d
en

ce
 o

f 
fo

o
d

 p
o

is
o

n
in

g
 

2.
 

G
re

at
er

 p
u

b
lic

 a
w

ar
en

es
s 

o
f 

fo
o

d
 s

af
et

y 
is

su
es

  
3.

 
Im

p
ro

ve
d

 P
u

b
lic

 H
ea

lt
h

 &
 W

el
l-

b
ei

n
g

  
4.

 
M

o
re

 c
o

m
p

lia
n

t 
b

u
si

n
es

se
s 

5.
 

R
ed

u
ce

d
 h

o
sp

it
al

 a
d

m
is

si
o

n
s 

6.
 

C
h

an
g

ed
 a

tt
it

u
d

e 
to

 s
m

o
ki

n
g

, h
ea

lt
h

y 
ea

ti
n

g
 a

n
d

 s
en

si
b

le
 d

ri
n

ki
n

g
 

7.
 

R
ed

u
ce

d
 u

n
d

er
 a

g
e 

sa
le

 o
f 

al
co

h
o

l 
8.

 
R

ed
u

ce
d

 in
ci

d
en

ts
 o

f 
al

co
h

o
l f

u
el

le
d

 A
S

B
 

9.
 

Im
p

ro
ve

 a
n

im
al

 w
el

fa
re

 
10

. R
ed

u
ce

 r
is

k 
o

f 
d

is
ea

se
 s

p
re

ad
 

11
. R

ed
u

ce
d

 P
o

llu
ti

o
n

 
12

. R
ed

u
ce

d
 n

u
is

an
ce

 a
ri

si
n

g
 f

ro
m

 b
u

si
n

es
se

s 
13

. G
re

at
er

 p
u

b
lic

 a
w

ar
en

es
s 

 
14

. C
o

n
tr

o
lle

d
 in

ci
d

en
ts

 o
f 

in
fe

ct
io

n
 

15
. R

ed
u

ct
io

n
 in

 il
l h

ea
lt

h
 / 

si
ck

n
es

s 
ab

se
n

ce
 a

ri
si

n
g

 f
ro

m
 a

cc
id

en
ts

 
16

. I
m

p
ro

ve
d

 c
u

st
o

m
er

 c
o

n
fi

d
en

ce
 o

n
 s

af
e 

u
se

 o
f 

ta
xi

s 
17

. R
ed

u
ct

io
n

 in
 a

lc
o

h
o

l-
fu

el
le

d
 c

ri
m

e 
an

d
 d

is
o

rd
er

 
18

. R
ed

u
ct

io
n

 in
 p

u
b

lic
 n

u
is

an
ce

 a
ss

o
ci

at
ed

 w
it

h
 li

ce
n

se
d

 p
re

m
is

es
 

19
. R

ed
u

ct
io

n
 in

 u
n

d
er

ag
e 

sa
le

s 
o

f 
ag

e-
re

st
ri

ct
ed

 p
ro

d
u

ct
s 

20
. R

ed
u

ct
io

n
 in

 n
u

is
an

ce
s 

re
la

te
d

 t
o

 f
ir

ew
o

rk
s 

21
. R

ed
u

ct
io

n
 in

 d
o

o
rs

te
p

 c
ri

m
e 

22
. I

n
cr

ea
se

 in
 o

ld
er

 p
eo

p
le

 f
ee

lin
g

 s
af

e 
in

 t
h

ei
r 

h
o

m
es

 
23

. R
ed

u
ce

d
 le

ve
l o

f 
co

u
n

te
rf

ei
t 

it
em

s 
b

ei
n

g
 s

u
p

p
lie

d
 in

 W
o

rc
es

te
rs

h
ir

e 
24

. I
m

p
ro

ve
d

 p
u

b
lic

 c
o

n
te

n
tm

en
t 

w
it

h
 t

h
ei

r 
n

ei
g

h
b

o
u

rh
o

o
d

 
25

. C
o

n
fi

d
en

t 
in

fo
rm

ed
 c

o
n

su
m

er
s 

26
. R

ed
u

ct
io

n
 in

 c
o

m
p

la
in

t 
le

ve
ls

 r
el

at
iv

e 
to

 b
u

si
n

es
se

s 
in

 W
o

rc
es

te
rs

h
ir

e 
27

. R
ed

u
ce

 t
h

e 
n

eg
at

iv
e 

ef
fe

ct
s 

o
f 

co
n

ta
m

in
at

ed
 la

n
d

 
28

. P
eo

p
le

 f
ee

l s
af

e 
in

 t
h

ei
r 

en
vi

ro
n

m
en

t 
29

. R
ed

u
ct

io
n

 in
 w

as
te

 c
au

se
d

 b
y 

ex
ce

ss
iv

e 
p

ac
ka

g
in

g
. 

30
. R

ed
u

ct
io

n
 in

 la
n

d
fi

ll 
ta

x 

Page 28



C
re

at
ed

 o
n 

11
/1

1/
20

10
 1

6:
01

:0
0 

V
er

si
on

 1
 

2

31
. M

o
re

 in
fo

rm
ed

 c
o

n
su

m
er

 c
h

o
ic

e 
32

. R
ed

u
ce

d
 e

n
vi

ro
n

m
en

ta
l e

m
is

si
o

n
s 

33
. I

n
cr

ea
si

n
g

 v
al

u
e 

d
em

an
d

 
34

. R
ed

u
ci

n
g

 f
ai

lu
re

 d
em

an
d

 
35

. C
o

n
si

st
en

t 
h

ig
h

 q
u

al
it

y 
se

rv
ic

e 
36

. S
at

is
fi

ed
 c

u
st

o
m

er
s 

37
. C

u
st

o
m

er
 a

b
le

 t
o

 a
cc

es
s 

se
rv

ic
e 

fa
ci

lit
ie

s 
b

y 
th

ei
r 

ch
o

se
n

 m
ea

n
s 

38
. S

ta
ff

 h
av

e 
th

e 
ri

g
h

t 
sk

ill
s,

 t
o

o
ls

 a
n

d
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 

39
. S

ta
ff

 e
n

g
ag

em
en

t 
an

d
 jo

b
 s

at
is

fa
ct

io
n

 
40

. M
o

re
 jo

in
ed

 u
p

 a
ct

iv
it

ie
s 

41
. R

ed
u

ct
io

n
 in

 c
o

m
p

la
in

ts
 r

ep
o

rt
ed

 

Page 29



C
re

at
ed

 o
n 

11
/1

1/
20

10
 1

6:
01

:0
0 

V
er

si
on

 1
 

3

A
IM

: 
 T

O
 P

R
O

T
E

C
T

 P
U

B
L

IC
 H

E
A

LT
H

 &
 S

A
F

E
T

Y
 

O
B

JE
C

T
IV

E
: 

 E
N

S
U

R
E

 T
H

A
T

 F
O

O
D

 IS
 S

A
F

E
 T

O
 E

A
T

 A
N

D
 C

O
R

R
E

C
T

L
Y

 D
E

S
C

R
IB

E
D

O
u

tc
o

m
es

:
R

ed
u

ce
d

 in
ci

d
en

ce
 o

f 
fo

o
d

 p
o

is
o

n
in

g
G

re
at

er
 p

u
b

lic
 a

w
ar

en
es

s 
o

f 
fo

o
d

 s
af

et
y 

is
su

es
  

Im
p

ro
ve

d
 P

u
b

lic
 H

ea
lt

h
 &

 W
el

l-
b

ei
n

g
 

A
ct

iv
it

y 
S

u
cc

es
s 

M
ea

su
re

 
O

u
tc

o
m

e 
C

o
n

tr
ib

u
ti

o
n

C
o

m
p

le
ti

o
n

D
at

e
C

on
du

ct
 r

is
k 

ba
se

d/
 in

te
lli

ge
nc

e-
le

d 
in

sp
ec

tio
n 

an
d 

sa
m

pl
in

g 
of

 b
us

in
es

se
s 

fo
r 

co
m

pl
ia

nc
e 

w
ith

 
re

le
va

nt
 le

gi
sl

at
io

n

 
1,

 2
, 3

 
 

P
ro

vi
de

 b
us

in
es

s 
ad

vi
ce

 a
nd

 e
du

ca
tio

n 
 

1,
 2

, 3
 

 
In

ve
st

ig
at

e 
co

m
pl

ai
nt

s 
 

1,
 2

, 3
 

 

O
B

JE
C

T
IV

E
: 

 T
A

C
K

L
E

 S
M

O
K

IN
G

, O
B

E
S

IT
Y

 &
 A

L
C

O
H

O
L

 A
B

U
S

E
 

O
u

tc
o

m
es

:
M

o
re

 c
o

m
p

lia
n

t 
b

u
si

n
es

se
s 

Im
p

ro
ve

d
 P

u
b

lic
 H

ea
lt

h
 &

 W
el

l-
b

ei
n

g
  

R
ed

u
ce

d
 h

o
sp

it
al

 a
d

m
is

si
o

n
s 

d
u

e 
C

h
an

g
ed

 a
tt

it
u

d
e 

to
 s

m
o

ki
n

g
, h

ea
lt

h
y 

ea
ti

n
g

 a
n

d
 s

en
si

b
le

 d
ri

n
ki

n
g

 
R

ed
u

ce
d

 u
n

d
er

 a
g

e 
sa

le
 o

f 
al

co
h

o
l 

R
ed

u
ce

d
 in

ci
d

en
ts

 o
f 

al
co

h
o

l f
u

el
le

d
 A

S
B

 
A

ct
iv

it
y 

S
u

cc
es

s 
M

ea
su

re
 

O
u

tc
o

m
e 

C
o

n
tr

ib
u

ti
o

n
C

o
m

p
le

ti
o

n
D

at
e

P
ro

m
ot

io
n 

of
 h

ea
lth

y 
lif

es
ty

le
 o

pt
io

ns
 

 
3,

 4
, 5

, 6
, 7

, 8
 

 
In

ve
st

ig
at

e 
co

m
pl

ai
nt

s 
ab

ou
t u

nd
er

 a
ge

 s
al

es
 a

nd
 

sm
ok

in
g 

in
 p

ub
lic

 p
la

ce
s 

 
3,

 4
, 5

, 6
, 7

, 8
 

 

D
ea

l w
ith

 in
ci

de
nt

s 
of

 n
on

 c
om

pl
ia

nc
e 

 
3,

 4
, 5

, 6
, 7

, 8
 

 
Li

ce
ns

in
g 

of
 p

ub
s 

, c
lu

bs
 &

 p
eo

pl
e 

 
3,

 4
, 5

, 6
, 7

, 8
 

 
T

es
t p

ur
ch

as
in

g 
of

 a
ge

 r
es

tr
ic

te
d 

pr
od

uc
ts

 
 

3,
 4

, 5
, 6

, 7
, 8

 
 

Page 30



C
re

at
ed

 o
n 

11
/1

1/
20

10
 1

6:
01

:0
0 

V
er

si
on

 1
 

4

U
nd

er
ta

ke
  p

ro
je

ct
 w

or
k,

  
 

3,
 4

, 5
, 6

, 7
, 8

 
 

O
B

JE
C

T
IV

E
: 

 C
O

N
T

R
O

L
 L

IV
E

S
T

O
C

K
 M

O
V

E
M

E
N

T
S

 &
 A

N
IM

A
L

 D
IS

E
A

S
E

 
O

u
tc

o
m

es
:

Im
p

ro
ve

 a
n

im
al

 w
el

fa
re

 
R

ed
u

ce
 r

is
k 

o
f 

d
is

ea
se

 s
p

re
ad

A
ct

iv
it

y 
S

u
cc

es
s 

M
ea

su
re

 
O

u
tc

o
m

e 
C

o
n

tr
ib

u
ti

o
n

C
o

m
p

le
ti

o
n

D
at

e
C

ar
ry

 o
ut

 in
te

lli
ge

nc
e 

le
ad

, r
is

k 
as

se
ss

ed
 

in
sp

ec
tio

ns
 

 
9,

 1
0 

 

G
at

he
r 

in
te

lli
ge

nc
e 

 
9,

 1
0 

 
M

ai
nt

en
an

ce
 a

nd
 e

xe
rc

is
in

g 
of

 e
m

er
ge

nc
y 

pl
an

s 
 

 
9,

 1
0 

 
E

nf
or

ce
m

en
t a

ct
iv

iti
es

 w
ith

 p
ar

tn
er

s 
w

he
re

 
ap

pr
op

ria
te

 
9,

 1
0 

 

R
ec

or
d 

an
im

al
 m

ov
em

en
ts

 a
nd

 li
ce

nc
e 

on
 A

LM
S

 
 

9,
 1

0 
 

O
B

JE
C

T
IV

E
: 

 IM
P

R
O

V
E

 A
IR

 Q
U

A
L

IT
Y

 
O

u
tc

o
m

es
:

Im
p

ro
ve

d
 P

u
b

lic
 H

ea
lt

h
 &

 W
el

l-
b

ei
n

g
 

R
ed

u
ce

d
 P

o
llu

ti
o

n
 

A
ct

iv
it

y 
S

u
cc

es
s 

M
ea

su
re

 
O

u
tc

o
m

e 
C

o
n

tr
ib

u
ti

o
n

C
o

m
p

le
ti

o
n

D
at

e
M

on
ito

rin
g 

of
 a

ir 
qu

al
ity

 a
nd

 d
ec

la
ra

tio
n 

of
 

A
Q

M
A

s 
w

he
re

 n
ec

es
sa

ry
 

 
3,

 1
1 

 

Li
ai

so
n 

w
ith

 p
ar

tn
er

s 
e.

g.
 H

ig
hw

ay
 a

nd
 p

la
nn

er
s 

 
3,

 1
1 

 

Page 31



C
re

at
ed

 o
n 

11
/1

1/
20

10
 1

6:
01

:0
0 

V
er

si
on

 1
 

5

O
B

JE
C

T
IV

E
: 

 M
IN

IM
IS

E
 H

E
A

L
T

H
 R

IS
K

S
 A

S
S

O
C

IA
T

E
D

 W
IT

H
 N

U
IS

A
N

C
E

S
 

O
u

tc
o

m
es

:
R

ed
u

ce
d

 n
u

is
an

ce
 a

ri
si

n
g

 f
ro

m
 b

u
si

n
es

se
s 

G
re

at
er

 p
u

b
lic

 a
w

ar
en

es
s 

 
Im

p
ro

ve
d

 p
u

b
lic

 h
ea

lt
h

 &
 w

el
l-

b
ei

n
g

 
R

ed
u

ce
d

 P
o

llu
ti

o
n

 
A

ct
iv

it
y 

S
u

cc
es

s 
M

ea
su

re
 

O
u

tc
o

m
e 

C
o

n
tr

ib
u

ti
o

n
C

o
m

p
le

ti
o

n
D

at
e

In
ve

st
ig

at
io

n 
of

 in
ci

de
nt

s 
 

3,
 1

1,
12

, 1
3 

 
D

et
er

m
in

in
g 

ap
pl

ic
at

io
ns

 fo
r 

en
vi

ro
nm

en
ta

l 
pe

rm
its

 
3,

 1
1,

12
, 1

3 
 

Li
ai

so
n 

w
ith

 P
la

nn
er

s 
 

3,
 1

1,
12

, 1
3 

 
P

ro
m

ot
io

na
l /

 E
du

ca
tio

na
l a

ct
iv

ity
 

 
3,

 1
1,

12
, 1

3 
 

O
B

JE
C

T
IV

E
: 

 C
O

N
T

R
O

L
 T

H
E

 S
P

R
E

A
D

 O
F

 IN
F

E
C

T
IO

U
S

 H
U

M
A

N
 D

IS
E

A
S

E
 

O
u

tc
o

m
es

:
Im

p
ro

ve
d

 p
u

b
lic

 h
ea

lt
h

 &
 w

el
l-

b
ei

n
g

  
C

o
n

tr
o

lle
d

 in
ci

d
en

ts
 o

f 
in

fe
ct

io
n

 
A

ct
iv

it
y 

S
u

cc
es

s 
M

ea
su

re
 

O
u

tc
o

m
e 

C
o

n
tr

ib
u

ti
o

n
C

o
m

p
le

ti
o

n
D

at
e

In
ve

st
ig

at
io

n 
of

 c
as

es
 o

f c
om

m
un

ic
ab

le
 d

is
ea

se
 

 
3,

 1
4 

 
S

ta
tu

to
ry

 r
ep

or
tin

g 
of

 in
fe

ct
io

us
 d

is
ea

se
 (

N
O

ID
S

) 
 

3,
 1

4 
 

R
es

po
nd

in
g 

to
 n

at
io

na
l e

m
er

ge
nc

ie
s 

 
 

3,
 1

4 
 

N
at

io
na

l H
ea

lth
 B

ur
ia

ls
 

 
3,

 1
4 

 
In

ve
st

ig
at

io
n 

of
 p

ub
lic

 h
ea

lth
 c

om
pl

ai
nt

s 
 

 
3 

 
E

nf
or

ce
m

en
t o

f f
oo

d 
ha

nd
lin

g 
ex

cl
us

io
ns

 
 

3,
 1

4 
 

P
es

t C
on

tr
ol

 tr
ea

tm
en

ts
 

 
3,

 1
4 

 
In

sp
ec

tio
n 

an
d 

sa
m

pl
in

g 
(s

w
im

m
in

g 
po

ol
s,

 
P

riv
at

e 
w

at
er

 s
up

pl
ie

s 
(P

W
S

 )
et

c)
 

 
3,

 1
4 

 

Page 32



C
re

at
ed

 o
n 

11
/1

1/
20

10
 1

6:
01

:0
0 

V
er

si
on

 1
 

6

O
B

JE
C

T
IV

E
: 

 E
N

S
U

R
E

 P
E

O
P

L
E

 A
R

E
 S

A
F

E
 A

T
 W

O
R

K
 &

 W
H

E
N

 V
IS

IT
IN

G
 B

U
S

IN
E

S
S

 P
R

E
M

IS
E

S
 

O
u

tc
o

m
es

:
M

o
re

 c
o

m
p

lia
n

t 
b

u
si

n
es

se
s 

Im
p

ro
ve

d
 p

u
b

lic
 h

ea
lt

h
 &

 w
el

l-
b

ei
n

g
 

A
ct

iv
it

y 
S

u
cc

es
s 

M
ea

su
re

 
O

u
tc

o
m

e 
C

o
n

tr
ib

u
ti

o
n

C
o

m
p

le
ti

o
n

D
at

e
P

ro
vi

si
on

 o
f a

dv
ic

e 
to

 b
us

in
es

se
s 

 
3,

 4
  

 
E

nf
or

ce
m

en
t a

ct
iv

iti
es

- 
co

m
pl

ai
nt

s/
in

ci
de

nt
s,

 
in

sp
ec

tio
ns

, s
am

pl
es

 e
tc

 
 

3,
 4

 
 

O
B

JE
C

T
IV

E
: 

 M
A

IN
T

A
IN

 T
H

E
 S

A
F

E
T

Y
 O

F
 T

A
X

I U
S

E
R

S
 

O
u

tc
o

m
es

:
M

o
re

 c
o

m
p

lia
n

t 
b

u
si

n
es

se
s 

Im
p

ro
ve

d
 p

u
b

lic
 h

ea
lt

h
 &

 w
el

l-
b

ei
n

g
 

Im
p

ro
ve

d
 c

u
st

o
m

er
 c

o
n

fi
d

en
ce

 o
n

 s
af

e 
u

se
 o

f 
ta

xi
s 

A
ct

iv
it

y 
S

u
cc

es
s 

M
ea

su
re

 
O

u
tc

o
m

e 
C

o
n

tr
ib

u
ti

o
n

C
o

m
p

le
ti

o
n

D
at

e
P

riv
at

e 
hi

re
/ H

ac
kn

ey
 c

ar
ria

ge
 li

ce
ns

in
g 

 
3,

 4
, 1

6 
 

 
E

nf
or

ce
m

en
t a

ct
iv

iti
es

 
 

3,
 1

6 
 

P
ol

ic
y 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t 

 
3,

 4
, 1

6 
 

Page 33



C
re

at
ed

 o
n 

11
/1

1/
20

10
 1

6:
01

:0
0 

V
er

si
on

 1
 

7

A
IM

: 
 T

O
 M

IN
IM

IS
E

 C
R

IM
E

 &
 D

IS
O

R
D

E
R

O
B

JE
C

T
IV

E
: 

 U
S

E
 P

O
W

E
R

S
 T

O
 L

IM
IT

 A
L

C
O

H
O

L
-F

U
E

L
L

E
D

 D
IS

O
R

D
E

R
 A

N
D

 U
N

D
E

R
A

G
E

 S
A

L
E

S
 

O
u

tc
o

m
es

:
M

o
re

 c
o

m
p

lia
n

t 
b

u
si

n
es

se
s 

R
ed

u
ct

io
n

 in
 a

lc
o

h
o

l-
fu

el
le

d
 c

ri
m

e 
an

d
 d

is
o

rd
er

 
 

R
ed

u
ct

io
n

 in
 p

u
b

lic
 n

u
is

an
ce

 a
ss

o
ci

at
ed

 w
it

h
 li

ce
n

se
d

 p
re

m
is

es
 

 
R

ed
u

ct
io

n
 in

 u
n

d
er

ag
e 

sa
le

s 
o

f 
ag

e-
re

st
ri

ct
ed

 p
ro

d
u

ct
s 

 
R

ed
u

ct
io

n
 in

 n
u

is
an

ce
s 

re
la

te
d

 t
o

 f
ir

ew
o

rk
s 

A
ct

iv
it

y 
S

u
cc

es
s 

M
ea

su
re

 
O

u
tc

o
m

e 
C

o
n

tr
ib

u
ti

o
n

C
o

m
p

le
ti

o
n

D
at

e
A

gr
ee

 li
ce

ns
in

g 
po

lic
y 

 
 

4,
 1

7,
 1

8,
 1

9,
 2

0 
Is

su
e 

lic
en

ce
s 

fo
r 

pr
em

is
e 

an
d 

pe
op

le
 

 
4,

 1
7,

 1
8,

 1
9,

 2
0

R
es

po
nd

 to
 r

eq
ue

st
s 

fo
r 

tr
ad

er
 a

dv
ic

e 
on

 li
ce

ns
in

g 
m

at
te

rs
 

4,
 1

7,
 1

8,
 1

9,
 2

0

E
nf

or
ce

m
en

t-
co

m
pl

ai
nt

s,
 in

sp
ec

tio
ns

 a
nd

 te
st

 
pu

rc
ha

se
s 

 
4,

 1
7,

 1
8,

 1
9,

 2
0 

 

O
B

JE
C

T
IV

E
: 

 S
T

O
P

 R
O

G
U

E
 T

R
A

D
IN

G
 

O
u

tc
o

m
es

:
 

R
ed

u
ct

io
n

 in
 d

o
o

rs
te

p
 c

ri
m

e 
 

In
cr

ea
se

 in
 o

ld
er

 p
eo

p
le

 f
ee

lin
g

 s
af

e 
in

 t
h

ei
r 

h
o

m
es

 
 

R
ed

u
ce

d
 le

ve
l o

f 
co

u
n

te
rf

ei
t 

it
em

s 
b

ei
n

g
 s

u
p

p
lie

d
 in

 W
o

rc
es

te
rs

h
ir

e 
A

ct
iv

it
y 

S
u

cc
es

s 
M

ea
su

re
 

O
u

tc
o

m
e 

C
o

n
tr

ib
u

ti
o

n
C

o
m

p
le

ti
o

n
D

at
e

D
ev

el
op

/ I
ns

tig
at

e 
N

o 
R

og
ue

 T
ra

de
r 

Z
on

es
 w

ith
 lo

ca
l 

C
D

R
P

s
 

21
, 2

2,
 2

3 
 

P
ro

vi
de

 r
eg

is
te

r 
of

 r
es

po
ns

ib
le

 h
om

e 
im

pr
ov

em
en

t 
bu

si
ne

ss
es

 (
T

ra
de

r 
R

eg
is

te
r)

  
 

21
, 2

2,
 2

3 
 

E
nf

or
ce

m
en

t t
hr

ou
gh

 c
om

pl
ai

nt
s,

 in
ve

st
ig

at
io

ns
 a

nd
 

 
21

, 2
2,

 2
3 

 

Page 34



C
re

at
ed

 o
n 

11
/1

1/
20

10
 1

6:
01

:0
0 

V
er

si
on

 1
 

8

sa
m

pl
es

A
dv

ic
e 

an
d 

ed
uc

at
io

n 
ac

tiv
iti

es
 

 
21

, 2
2,

 2
3 

 
O

B
JE

C
T

IV
E

: 
 P

R
O

T
E

C
T

 P
E

O
P

L
E

 F
R

O
M

 A
N

T
I-

S
O

C
IA

L
 B

E
H

A
V

IO
U

R
 C

A
U

S
E

D
 B

Y
 N

O
IS

E
 A

N
D

 O
T

H
E

R
 N

U
IS

A
N

C
E

S
 

O
u

tc
o

m
e:

 
 

Im
p

ro
ve

d
 p

u
b

lic
 c

o
n

te
n

tm
en

t 
w

it
h

 t
h

ei
r 

n
ei

g
h

b
o

u
rh

o
o

d
 

 
R

ed
u

ct
io

n
 in

 c
o

m
p

la
in

ts
 r

ep
o

rt
ed

 
A

ct
iv

it
y 

S
u

cc
es

s 
M

ea
su

re
 

O
u

tc
o

m
e 

C
o

n
tr

ib
u

ti
o

n
C

o
m

p
le

ti
o

n
D

at
e

R
es

po
nd

 to
 c

om
pl

ai
nt

s 
ab

ou
t s

ta
tu

to
ry

 n
ui

sa
nc

es
  

 
24

, 4
1 

 
E

nf
or

ce
m

en
t a

ct
iv

ity
 

 
24

, 4
1 

 

O
B

JE
C

T
IV

E
: 

 E
N

S
U

R
E

 W
E

L
F

A
R

E
 O

F
 L

IV
E

S
T

O
C

K
/O

T
H

E
R

 A
N

IM
A

L
S

 
O

u
tc

o
m

e:
 

Im
p

ro
ve

 a
n

im
al

 w
el

fa
re

 
A

ct
iv

it
y 

S
u

cc
es

s 
M

ea
su

re
 

O
u

tc
o

m
e 

C
o

n
tr

ib
u

ti
o

n
C

o
m

p
le

ti
o

n
D

at
e

P
ro

m
ot

e 
A

ni
m

al
 H

ea
lth

 &
 W

el
fa

re
 a

cr
os

s 
th

e 
C

ou
nt

y 
th

ro
ug

h 
ad

vi
ce

 a
nd

 e
du

ca
tio

n
 

9 
 

E
nf

or
ce

m
en

t-
 c

om
pl

ai
nt

s,
 in

ve
st

ig
at

io
n 

an
d 

lic
en

si
ng

 
 

9 
 

P
ar

tic
ip

at
e 

in
 r

eg
io

na
l p

ro
je

ct
s 

 
 

9 
 

T
ak

e 
en

fo
rc

em
en

t a
ct

io
n 

ag
ai

ns
t o

ffe
nd

er
s 

 
9 

 

Page 35



C
re

at
ed

 o
n 

11
/1

1/
20

10
 1

6:
01

:0
0 

V
er

si
on

 1
 

9

A
IM

: 
 T

O
 S

U
P

P
O

R
T

 C
O

N
S

U
M

E
R

S
, B

U
S

IN
E

S
S

E
S

 A
N

D
 E

C
O

N
O

M
IC

 
D

E
V

E
L

O
P

M
E

N
T

O
B

JE
C

T
IV

E
: 

 E
N

S
U

R
E

 F
A

IR
 A

N
D

 S
A

F
E

 B
U

S
IN

E
S

S
 P

R
A

C
T

IC
E

S
 S

U
P

P
O

R
T

IN
G

 T
H

E
 D

E
V

E
L

O
P

M
E

N
T

 O
F

 L
E

G
IT

IM
A

T
E

 
E

N
T

E
R

P
R

IS
E

O
u

tc
o

m
e:

 
M

o
re

 c
o

m
p

lia
n

t 
b

u
si

n
es

se
s 

A
ct

iv
it

y 
S

u
cc

es
s 

M
ea

su
re

 
O

u
tc

o
m

e 
C

o
n

tr
ib

u
ti

o
n

C
o

m
p

le
ti

o
n

D
at

e
C

on
du

ct
 r

is
k 

ba
se

d/
 in

te
lli

ge
nc

e-
le

d 
in

sp
ec

tio
n 

of
 

bu
si

ne
ss

es
 fo

r 
co

m
pl

ia
nc

e 
w

ith
 r

el
ev

an
t l

eg
is

la
tio

n
 

4 
 

R
es

po
nd

 to
 r

eq
ue

st
s 

fo
r 

bu
si

ne
ss

 a
dv

ic
e 

 
4 

 

O
B

JE
C

T
IV

E
: 

 S
U

P
P

O
R

T
 C

O
N

S
U

M
E

R
S

, P
A

R
T

IC
U

L
A

R
L

Y
 V

U
L

N
E

R
A

B
L

E
 P

E
O

P
L

E
, I

N
 T

H
E

IR
 P

U
R

C
H

A
S

IN
G

 O
F

 G
O

O
D

S
 A

N
D

 
S

E
R

V
IC

E
S

 

O
u

tc
o

m
es

:
 

C
o

n
fi

d
en

t 
in

fo
rm

ed
 c

o
n

su
m

er
s 

R
ed

u
ct

io
n

 in
 c

o
m

p
la

in
t 

le
ve

ls
 r

el
at

iv
e 

to
 b

u
si

n
es

se
s 

in
 W

o
rc

es
te

rs
h

ir
e

A
ct

iv
it

y 
S

u
cc

es
s 

M
ea

su
re

 
O

u
tc

o
m

e 
C

o
n

tr
ib

u
ti

o
n

C
o

m
p

le
ti

o
n

D
at

e
P

ro
vi

de
 a

dv
ic

e/
in

te
rv

en
tio

n 
fo

r 
co

ns
um

er
s 

in
 

re
la

tio
n 

to
 d

ea
lin

g 
w

ith
 b

re
ac

he
s 

of
 c

on
su

m
er

 c
iv

il 
la

w

 
25

 
 

P
ro

vi
de

 in
fo

rm
at

io
n/

ed
uc

at
io

n 
to

 th
e 

pu
bl

ic
 to

 m
ak

e 
th

em
 m

or
e 

co
nf

id
en

t c
on

su
m

er
s 

 
25

 
 

Page 36



C
re

at
ed

 o
n 

11
/1

1/
20

10
 1

6:
01

:0
0 

V
er

si
on

 1
 

10

O
B

JE
C

T
IV

E
: 

 D
E

A
L

 W
IT

H
 L

A
N

D
 T

H
A

T
 H

A
S

 B
E

E
N

 C
O

N
T

A
M

IN
A

T
E

D
 A

N
D

 E
N

A
B

L
E

 IT
S

 S
A

F
E

 R
E

-U
S

E
 

O
u

tc
o

m
es

:
 

R
ed

u
ce

 t
h

e 
n

eg
at

iv
e 

ef
fe

ct
s 

o
f 

co
n

ta
m

in
at

ed
 la

n
d

 
 

Im
p

ro
ve

d
 p

u
b

lic
 h

ea
lt

h
 &

 w
el

l b
ei

n
g

 
 

R
ed

u
ce

d
 P

o
llu

ti
o

n
 

 
P

eo
p

le
 f

ee
l s

af
e 

in
 t

h
ei

r 
en

vi
ro

n
m

en
t 

A
ct

iv
it

y 
S

u
cc

es
s 

M
ea

su
re

 
O

u
tc

o
m

e 
C

o
n

tr
ib

u
ti

o
n

C
o

m
p

le
ti

o
n

D
at

e
In

sp
ec

tio
n 

of
 p

ot
en

tia
lly

 c
on

ta
m

in
at

ed
 la

nd
 

 
3,

 1
1,

 2
7,

 2
8 

 
 

R
ev

ie
w

 o
f a

ll 
pl

an
ni

ng
 a

pp
lic

at
io

ns
 

 
11

, 2
7,

 2
8 

 
C

om
pl

ai
nt

s/
R

eq
ue

st
s 

fo
r 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

 
3,

 1
1,

 2
7,

 2
8 

 

Page 37



C
re

at
ed

 o
n 

11
/1

1/
20

10
 1

6:
01

:0
0 

V
er

si
on

 1
 

11

A
IM

: 
 T

O
 P

R
O

T
E

C
T

 T
H

E
 E

N
V

IR
O

N
M

E
N

T
 A

N
D

 T
A

C
K

L
E

 T
H

E
 E

F
F

E
C

T
S

 O
F

 
C

L
IM

A
T

E
 C

H
A

N
G

E
 

O
B

JE
C

T
IV

E
: 

 C
O

N
T

R
O

L
 IN

D
U

S
T

R
IA

L
 P

O
L

L
U

T
IO

N
 

O
u

tc
o

m
es

:
 

R
ed

u
ce

d
 P

o
llu

ti
o

n
 

 
P

eo
p

le
 f

ee
l s

af
e 

in
 t

h
ei

r 
en

vi
ro

n
m

en
t

A
ct

iv
it

y 
S

u
cc

es
s 

M
ea

su
re

 
O

u
tc

o
m

e 
C

o
n

tr
ib

u
ti

o
n

C
o

m
p

le
ti

o
n

D
at

e
P

la
nn

in
g 

co
ns

ul
ta

tio
n 

 
11

, 2
8 

 
C

on
si

de
ra

tio
n 

of
 a

pp
lic

at
io

ns
 fo

r 
E

nv
iro

nm
en

ta
l 

pe
rm

its
 

 
11

, 2
8 

 

E
nf

or
ce

m
en

t-
in

sp
ec

tio
ns

 a
nd

 r
es

po
ns

e 
to

 
co

m
pl

ai
nt

s 
 

11
, 2

8 
 

O
B

JE
C

T
IV

E
: 

 S
U

R
V

E
Y

 G
O

O
D

S
 F

O
R

 W
A

S
T

E
 C

A
U

S
E

D
 B

Y
 E

X
C

E
S

S
IV

E
 P

A
C

K
A

G
IN

G
 

O
u

tc
o

m
es

:
 

R
ed

u
ct

io
n

 in
 w

as
te

 c
au

se
d

 b
y 

ex
ce

ss
iv

e 
p

ac
ka

g
in

g
 

 
R

ed
u

ct
io

n
 in

 la
n

d
fi

ll 
ta

x 
A

ct
iv

it
y 

S
u

cc
es

s 
M

ea
su

re
 

O
u

tc
o

m
e 

C
o

n
tr

ib
u

ti
o

n
C

o
m

p
le

ti
o

n
D

at
e

P
ro

je
ct

s 
lo

ok
in

g 
at

 p
ro

du
ct

s 
fo

r 
ex

ce
ss

iv
e 

le
ve

ls
 o

f 
pa

ck
ag

in
g 

 
29

, 3
0 

 

A
dv

ic
e 

an
d 

ed
uc

at
io

n 
to

 p
ub

lic
 a

nd
 b

us
in

es
se

s 
 

29
, 3

0 
 

Page 38



C
re

at
ed

 o
n 

11
/1

1/
20

10
 1

6:
01

:0
0 

V
er

si
on

 1
 

12

O
B

JE
C

T
IV

E
: 

 M
O

N
IT

O
R

 G
O

O
D

S
 F

O
R

 E
N

E
R

G
Y

 E
F

F
IC

IE
N

C
Y

 L
A

B
E

L
L

IN
G

O
u

tc
o

m
es

:
 

M
o

re
 in

fo
rm

ed
 c

o
n

su
m

er
 c

h
o

ic
e 

 
R

ed
u

ce
d

 e
n

vi
ro

n
m

en
ta

l e
m

is
si

o
n

s
A

ct
iv

it
y 

S
u

cc
es

s 
M

ea
su

re
 

O
u

tc
o

m
e 

C
o

n
tr

ib
u

ti
o

n
C

o
m

p
le

ti
o

n
D

at
e

P
ro

je
ct

s 
lo

ok
in

g 
at

 e
le

ct
ric

al
 a

pp
lia

nc
es

 fo
r 

en
er

gy
 

pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

 la
be

lli
ng

 
 

31
, 3

2 
 

A
dv

ic
e 

an
d 

ed
uc

at
io

n 
to

 p
ub

lic
 a

nd
 b

us
in

es
se

s 
 

31
, 3

2 
 

Page 39



C
re

at
ed

 o
n 

11
/1

1/
20

10
 1

6:
01

:0
0 

V
er

si
on

 1
 

13

A
IM

: 
 T

o
 P

ro
vi

d
e 

a 
G

re
at

 S
er

vi
ce

 t
h

at
 O

u
r 

C
u

st
o

m
er

s 
W

an
t 

O
B

JE
C

T
IV

E
: 

 D
E

L
IV

E
R

 E
F

F
IC

IE
N

T
 A

N
D

 E
F

F
E

C
T

IV
E

, V
A

L
U

E
-F

O
R

-M
O

N
E

Y
 S

E
R

V
IC

E
S

 
O

u
tc

o
m

es
:

 
In

cr
ea

si
n

g
 v

al
u

e 
d

em
an

d
 

 
R

ed
u

ci
n

g
 f

ai
lu

re
 d

em
an

d
 

 
C

o
n

si
st

en
t 

h
ig

h
 q

u
al

it
y 

se
rv

ic
e 

A
ct

iv
it

y 
S

u
cc

es
s 

M
ea

su
re

 
O

u
tc

o
m

e 
C

o
n

tr
ib

u
ti

o
n

C
o

m
p

le
ti

o
n

D
at

e
S

ys
te

m
s 

th
in

ki
ng

 a
pp

ro
ac

h 
to

 o
ur

 s
er

vi
ce

 
 

33
, 3

4,
 3

5 
 

O
B

JE
C

T
IV

E
: 

 T
A

R
G

E
T

 O
U

R
 S

E
R

V
IC

E
S

 T
O

 O
U

R
 C

U
S

T
O

M
E

R
S

 N
E

E
D

S
 

O
u

tc
o

m
e:

 
S

at
is

fi
ed

 c
u

st
o

m
er

s 
A

ct
iv

it
y 

S
u

cc
es

s 
M

ea
su

re
 

O
u

tc
o

m
e 

C
o

n
tr

ib
u

ti
o

n
C

o
m

p
le

ti
o

n
D

at
e

A
do

pt
 a

 s
ys

te
m

s 
th

in
ki

ng
- 

w
ha

t m
at

te
rs

 a
pp

ro
ac

h 
to

 s
er

vi
ce

 d
es

ig
n 

 
36

 
 

C
us

to
m

er
 s

at
is

fa
ct

io
n 

su
rv

ey
s 

 
36

 
 

Q
ua

lit
y 

m
on

ito
rin

g 
 

36
 

 

O
B

JE
C

T
IV

E
: 

 P
R

O
V

ID
E

 A
C

C
E

S
S

 T
O

 O
U

R
 S

E
R

V
IC

E
S

 F
O

R
 A

L
L

 O
U

R
 C

U
S

T
O

M
E

R
S

 
O

u
tc

o
m

e:
 

C
u

st
o

m
er

 a
b

le
 t

o
 a

cc
es

s 
se

rv
ic

e 
fa

ci
lit

ie
s 

b
y 

th
ei

r 
ch

o
se

n
 m

ea
n

s
A

ct
iv

it
y 

S
u

cc
es

s 
M

ea
su

re
 

O
u

tc
o

m
e 

C
o

n
tr

ib
u

ti
o

n
C

o
m

p
le

ti
o

n
D

at
e

D
ev

el
op

 H
ub

 a
s 

ou
r 

fr
on

t o
ffi

ce
 p

or
ta

l 
 

37
 

 
D

ev
el

op
 e

le
ct

ed
 m

em
be

r/
 c

us
to

m
er

 s
ur

ge
rie

s 
to

 
en

ha
nc

e 
fle

xi
bl

e 
w

or
ki

ng
 

 
37

 
 

Page 40



C
re

at
ed

 o
n 

11
/1

1/
20

10
 1

6:
01

:0
0 

V
er

si
on

 1
 

14

O
B

JE
C

T
IV

E
:

E
N

S
U

R
E

 S
T

A
F

F
  A

R
E

 D
E

V
E

L
O

P
E

D
 A

N
D

 M
O

T
IV

A
T

E
D

.
O

u
tc

o
m

e:
 

S
ta

ff
 h

av
e 

th
e 

ri
g

h
t 

sk
ill

s,
 t

o
o

ls
 a

n
d

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

 
 

S
ta

ff
 e

n
g

ag
em

en
t 

an
d

 jo
b

 s
at

is
fa

ct
io

n
 

A
ct

iv
it

y 
S

u
cc

es
s 

M
ea

su
re

 
O

u
tc

o
m

e 
C

o
n

tr
ib

u
ti

o
n

C
o

m
p

le
ti

o
n

D
at

e
E

m
br

ac
e 

sy
st

em
s 

th
in

ki
ng

 fo
r 

al
l s

ta
ff 

 
38

, 3
9 

 
A

do
pt

 fl
ex

ib
le

 w
or

ki
ng

 to
 e

ns
ur

e 
a 

pr
op

er
 

w
or

k/
lif

e 
ba

la
nc

e 
 

38
, 3

9 
 

T
ra

in
in

g 
an

d 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t o
f s

ta
ff 

 
38

, 3
9 

 

O
B

JE
C

T
IV

E
:

W
O

R
K

 W
IT

H
 O

T
H

E
R

 O
R

G
A

N
IS

A
T

IO
N

S
 T

O
 C

O
O

R
D

IN
A

T
E

 O
U

R
 J

O
IN

T
 R

E
S

P
O

N
S

E
S

 
O

u
tc

o
m

e:
 

M
o

re
 jo

in
ed

 u
p

 a
ct

iv
it

ie
s 

A
ct

iv
it

y 
S

u
cc

es
s 

M
ea

su
re

 
O

u
tc

o
m

e 
C

o
n

tr
ib

u
ti

o
n

C
o

m
p

le
ti

o
n

D
at

e
S

ha
re

 in
te

lli
ge

nc
e 

ac
ro

ss
 th

e 
re

gi
on

 a
nd

 w
ith

 
ot

he
r 

ag
en

ci
es

 
 

40
 

 

D
ev

el
op

 p
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

s 
 

40
 

 
D

ev
el

op
 jo

in
t w

or
k 

pl
an

s 
an

d 
ou

tc
om

es
 

 
40

 
 

P
ur

su
e 

jo
in

t f
un

di
ng

 o
pp

or
tu

ni
tie

s 
 

40
 

 
P

ur
su

e 
op

tio
ns

 fo
r 

co
-lo

ca
tio

n 
w

ith
 p

ar
tn

er
s 

 
40

 
 

Page 41



Page 42

This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 

Joint Committee 
25th November 2010 
 
REGULATORY SERVICES BUDGET 2011/12 – 2013/14 

  

Recommendation 
 

That the budget for 2011/12 – 2013/14 be approved.   

Contribution to 
Priorities 
 

The development of a robust budget and financial 
management framework will ensure the priorities of the 
service are delivered within the agreed budget. 

Introduction/Summary 
 

The budget for 2011/12 was included in the original 
business case for Regulatory Services as implemented 1st 
July 2010. 

Background  
 

The development of the business case for Regulatory 
Services included a detailed analysis of the financial 
implications for each partner. 

Following the formal agreement of the financial 
arrangements a number of discussions have been held to 
review the assumptions made and to ensure all services 
provided by Regulatory Services are included in the financial 
projections.  

Report Officers have reviewed the financial position based on 
estimated expenditure and have prepared a detailed budget 
as attached at Appendix 1.  This reflects the financial 
position associated with the establishment that will be in 
place following the initial restructure. 

The following assumptions have been made during the 
compilation of this budget: 

• The costs attributed to general expenditure have 
been included based on the business case with no 
increase for inflation. 

• Salary budget has been included as per the 
establishment in the original business case. 

• Savings to be identified following the restructure 
amount to £92k, due to job evaluation and timing of 
filling the new structure, this will be monitored during 

Agenda Item 8

Page 43



 

the year to ensure it is achieved.   

• Following the approval of the formal agreement it has 
been identified that there are three posts which have 
not been transferred.  These relate to 2 posts at 
Redditch BC and 1 at Worcester City.  The due 
diligence failures have built in pressures for the 
partners concerned and that this matter will be 
considered as part of the development of the new 
cost sharing arrangements to be agreed by 2013. 

• The Government have reduced the funding in 
relation to the DEFRA Grant, this is the first 
asymmetric impact on the partnership.  This will have 
asymmetric implications on the future cost shares 
under the terms of the legal agreement.  

The HOS has agreed that the savings to be identified 
following the restructure can be achieved during 2011/12, 
but cannot identify which posts will be cut from the 
establishment as this will be done over the next few months 
of the restructure implementation. 

 

Financial Implications 
 

None other than those stated in the Appendix 

Sustainability 
 

None as a direct result of this report 

Contact Points 
 

Jayne Pickering – 01527-881400 
Debbie Randall – 01527-881235 

Background Papers 
 

Detailed financial business case  

 

Page 44



APPENDIX 1

REGULATORY SERVICES BUDGET 2011/2012 to 2013/14

Account description

Proposed 
Budget 

2011/2012                  
£

Proposed 
Budget 

2012/2013                  
£

Proposed 
Budget 

2013/2014                  
£

Employees
 Monthly salaries 4,404 4,392 4,392
 Agency workers 3 3 3
 Training for professional qualifications 2 2 2
 Medical fees (employees') 1 1 1
 Employers' liability insurance 19 19 19
 Employees' professional subscriptions 2 2 2
Sub-Total - Employees 4,431 4,419 4,419

Premises
 Internal repair/maint. 1 1 1
 Rents 321 321 321
 Room hire 6 6 6
 Water charges 0 0 0
 Cleaning and domestic supplies 0 0 0
Sub-Total - Premises 328 328 328

Transport
 Vehicle repairs/maint'ce 4 4 4
 Diesel fuel 6 6 6
 Petrol 4 4 4
 Tyres 0 0 0
 Licences 1 1 1
 Contract hire of vehicles 8 8 8
 Vehicle insurances 3 3 3
 Car allowances 195 195 195
 Vehicle Maintenance 10 10 10
Sub-Total - Transport 231 231 231

Supplies & Service
 Equipment - purchase 63 63 63
 Equipment - maintenance 15 15 15
 Equipment - rental/lease 1 1 1
 Materials - purchased 15 15 15
 Clothing and uniforms 7 7 7
 Laundry 1 1 1
 Seminar and course fees 7 7 7
 Training fees 70 70 70
 General insurances 20 20 20
 Printing and stationery 46 46 46
 Books and publications 53 53 53
 Postage/packaging 6 6 6
 Computer - general costs 16 16 16
 Computer - software 18 18 18
 Computer - specific costs - Estimated licensing and other revenue costs of    
ICT investment

67 67 67

 Telephones 36 36 36
 Fares and parking charges 23 23 23
 Miscellaneous expenses 31 31 31
 Legal fees 23 23 23
 Telephone pool overhead 15 15 15
 Subsistence expenses 7 7 7
 General expenses 8 8 8
 Support service recharges 250 250 250
 Customer service posts 50 50 50
 Audit 10 10 10
Sub-Total - Supplies & Service 858 858 858

Contractors
 Consultants' fees 26 26 26
 Contractors' fees/charges/SLA's 525 525 525
 Advertising (general) 4 4 4
 Grants and subscriptions 2 2 2
 Marketing/promotion/publicity 5 5 5
Sub-Total - Contractors 562 562 562

Income
 INCOME miscellaneous fees -3 -3 -3
Sub-Total - Income -3 -3 -3

Savings to be identified following restructure (job evaluation, timing of 
establishment) -92 -80 -80

Further staffing reductions (lack of natural wastage) -446 -446

BUDGET TOTAL AS PER LEGAL AGREEMENT 6,315 5,869 6,315

Defra grant reduction -79 -104 -127
Posts not transferred to Regulatory Services
  Wilson - Redditch - £34,818
  Shammen - Redditch - £38,993
  Dobbyn -Worcs City - £29,660
Due Diligence -104

ADDITIONAL SAVINGS TO BE IDENTIFIED -79 -104 -231

PARTNER SHARES  
Bromsgrove DC 700
Malvern Hills 605
Redditch 720
Worcester City 697
Wychavon 1,044
Wyre Forest 683
Worcestershire 1,866

6,315 0 0

Partner cost shares will be determined in accordance with the legal 
agreement in 2012/13 and 2013/14

Budget adjustments not included in base budget:-
Malvern Hills - Land Drainage Employee - Employed until end of May'11 - 2 
months additional budget required 3
Wyre Forest  - Additional budget - Taxi maintenance budget 10
Redditch - Pay back for 2 employees - Clive Wilson / Steve Shammen (-74) £65,399 less 5% Vacancy Management + 7.6% NI + 11.2% Pension
Worcs City - Possible pay back of Dobbyn - Not Transferred (-30) £26,280 less 5% Vacancy Management + 7.6% NI + 11.2% Pension
Accommodation Reduction - Wyre Forest from £69,950 to £40,000 (30)Page 45



Page 46

This page is intentionally left blank



 

Joint Committee 
Date 25th November 2010 
Title: Worcestershire Food Choices Project - improving 
healthy options in food outlets across the County   

  

Recommendation 
 

To receive this report as an item for information and to 
consider the potential to secure future funding opportunities. 
 

Contribution to 
Priorities/ 
Recommendations 
 

This project directly contributes to both the WRS priority to 
protect public health (tackle smoking, obesity and alcohol 
abuse) and the former Worcestershire Local Area 
Agreement, Health and Well-being targets a) to support and 
improve the leading of healthy lifestyles and well-being of 
adults, children and young people and b) to reduce levels of 
inequality within the community. It is considered that the 
project is still relevant despite the abolition of the LAAs by 
the Local Government Secretary Eric Pickles in October 
2010 

Introduction/Summary 
Background  

 

Food eaten outside the home makes up an increasing 
proportion of our daily diet, with the average person now 
eating one in six meals a week away from home1. Men 
consume about a quarter of their calories when eating out, 
and women around a fifth. The choices made when eating 
out go a long way to contributing to a balanced diet. 
Research has also shown that in areas of deprivation there 
is a prevalence of people eating less than 1 portion of fruit 
and vegetables per day despite the 5 a day 
recommendation. 

By working in partnership with Worcestershire PCT Public 
Health, WRS has secured funding to the value of £50,000 to 
deliver on a nutrition project in food outlets across the 
County in an attempt to influence food choices by 
stimulating supply and demand of healthier options.  

Report  
 

The Food Standards Agency (FSA) has recently worked 
with large manufacturers, retailers and caterers to improve 
the nutritional value of foods they offer, focusing on the key 
nutrients of public health concern i.e. to increase the 
consumption of fruit and vegetables and reduce the 
population’s salt, sugar, saturated fat and energy intake. 
Small local outlets also have a significant role to play in 
improving consumers’ access to healthier options. 

 By building on these previous projects, three localised 
nutritional initiatives are planned to be executed in 36 pilot 
premises across Worcestershire. The project consists of 

Agenda Item 10

Page 47



 
 

three work streams 1) to increase the quality and range of 
fruit and vegetables at independent convenience stores 
located in low income areas and 2) change cooking 
methods and ingredients at i) mobile caterers operating in 
lay-bys, truck stops or industrial estates used by sedentary 
truckers and ii) workplace canteens serving a high 
percentage of routine and manual workers.  
 
The key questions/hypothesis to be explored is whether 
business can change how they prepare and / or sell 
products to make the healthier choice the easy choice 
without adversely affecting bottom line (and at best 
improving bottom line) and at the same time ensuring the 
customer is satisfied with their purchase. Any learning will 
subsequently be shared with similar local food outlets. 
 
This is the first externally funded project for WRS however 
with the forthcoming Public Health White Paper expected to 
strengthen the role of Public Health within Local 
Government, there is the potential for WRS to secure future 
funding by being part of the Total Place agenda; delivering 
on health and well being projects on behalf of or alongside 
partner organisations. WRS is well placed to make such a 
contribution due to its established relationship with local 
business and the underpinning public health philosophy of 
Environmental Health and Trading Standards disciplines. 
 

Financial Implications 
 

Delivery of the project is reliant on the funding from 
Worcestershire PCT to the value of £50,000. A significant 
proportion of these monies will be used for backfilling routine 
inspection work of existing officers thereby releasing them to 
work on this project. The project plan has assessed the risks 
and has identified control measures.   
 

Sustainability 
 

The experience gained from delivering this project will 
increase the skills set of the workforce and add to the 
portfolio of successful and sustainable services on offer by 
WRS thus increasing the potential to attract additional health 
and wellbeing funding opportunities. 
 

Contact Points 
 

Mr Steve Jorden, Head of Worcestershire Regulatory 
Services 
Anita Fletcher, WRS, Worcester City 
 

Background Papers 
 

PROJECT PLAN for Worcestershire Food Choices Project - 
improving healthy options in food outlets across the County.  
 
Healthy Weight, Healthy Lives -A Cross Government 
Strategy for England 
 
1Healthier Eating / Healthy Catering www.food.gov.uk 

 

Page 48



 
  
 

 

 

 

Joint Committee 
25th November 2010 
Report Title Update to Press Release Protocol 

  

Recommendation 
 

That the Board notes and approves the update to the Press 
release Protocol 

Contribution to 
Priorities 
 

 

Introduction/Summary 
 

Communications has always been a key factor in the WRS 
project initially to make sure staff get consistent messages. 
As the project progresses we now need to make sure that 
messages sent out from the service to customers are also 
consistent. Work has been done on the branding and now 
press releases relating to WRS, and how we send them out, 
have also been reviewed. 
 

Background  
 

Previously, as set out in the Communications Strategy, there 
was a two-way split between press releases. Those relating 
to the project were sent out via Bromsgrove and County 
Press Teams and day to day service delivery press releases 
were sent out by ‘local’ press teams. 
However, as the service moves towards unification, it 
appeared messages which were being sent out ‘locally’ 
could be used across the County. 
The measures below have been sent to current WRS 
Managers and the County Communications Group which 
comprises Media Officers from across Worcestershire’s 
seven Councils. 
 

Report Press Release Protocol 
 

• All day to day service press releases come through 
the 'local' communications teams but to be put on the 
press release template with relevant ‘local’ contact 
details. The 'local' Joint Committee member is the 
spokesperson. 

  

• If the WRS managers or Communications Team 
think that the message could be County-wide then 

Agenda Item 11

Page 49



 
 
  

the press release is sent to Gary Morgan at the 
County Council for distribution and he is the contact 
on the release. Joint Committee Chair Anna 
Mackison is the spokesperson. 
(gmorgan@worcestershire.gov.uk) 

  

• All press releases about the new WRS service 
project to come through to Gary Morgan from County 
and sent out on the press release template with his 
contact details. 

 
These are interim measures which will be put into place until 
such a time that a communications function is put into the 
WRS structure. The protocols will also be reviewed if the 
resource in the County or Bromsgrove Communications 
Team becomes an issue. 
 

Financial Implications 
 

None 

Sustainability 
 

 

Contact Points 
 

Anne-Marie Darroch 
Communications & Customer First Manager 
Bromsgrove District Council 

Background Papers 
 

 

 

Page 50


	Agenda
	3 To consider the minutes of the meeting of Worcestershire Shared Services Joint Committee held on 9th September 2010
	4 Worcestershire Regulatory Services - 'draft' Protocol for referral of Decisions
	5 Project Plan Update - Ian Edwards
	WRS High Level Project Plan 2010 - 2011

	6 Worcestershire Regulatory Services 2010 - 2011 Budget Update
	Appendix 1 - Revenue Monitoring Report to end of Sept 10
	Appendix 2 - WRS Salary Breakdown
	Appendix 3 - WRS Capital Monitoring Summary

	7 Worcestershire Regulatory Services - Draft Service Plan 2011/ 2012
	WRS Draft Service Delivery Plan 2011-2012 PDF Final

	8 Worcestershire Regulatory Services - Budget 2011/2012 - 2013/2014
	Appendix 1 - WRS Detailed Budget 2011 - 2014

	10 Food Choices Project
	11 Update to Press Release Protocol

